MAYOR ROSANNE S. FOUST MINUTES
VICE MAYOR DIANE HOWARD

COUNCIL MEMBER ALICIA C. AGUIRRE 1017 MIDDLEFIELD ROAD
COUNCIL MEMBER IAN BAIN REDWOOD CITY, CA
COUNCIL MEMBER JIM HARTNETT

COUNCIL MEMBER JEFF IRA

COUNCIL MEMBER BARBARA PIERCE

SPECIAL JOINT CITY COUNCIL/
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD MEETING
October 19, 2009

7:00 P.M.

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL - All Council Members present

Staff present:

City Manager Ingram, City Attorney Yamamoto, City Clerk Vonderlinden,
Deputy City Manager Gonzalez, Human Resources Director and Assistant
City Manager Bell, Deputy City Clerk Wong, Fire Chief Skinner, Library
Director Genesy, Public Works Director Barwacz, Parks, Recreation, and
Community Services Director Centeno, Building, Infrastructure, and
Transportation Director Chang, Finance Director Ponty, Library Division
Manager Kramer, Public Works Superintendents Ezell and Gibbons,
Parks, Recreation, and Community Services Superintendents Beth and
Hover, Fire Battalion Chief Maupin, Fire Administrative Analyst Weiss,
Finance Manager Freeman, Information Technology Manager Gelphman,
Police Captains Cesena, Hernandez, and Matuszak, Fleet Manager Kyaw,
Senior Redevelopment Advisor Moeller, Community Development
Management Analyst Wheeler, Redevelopment Project Manager Young,
Administrative Secretary Easterbrook, Librarian Il Spore-Alhadef, Library
Services Supervisor Meeks, Public Works Analyst Narahara, and Delivery
Driver/Stock Clerk Farias, Jr.

Others Present: Planning Chair Gee, Planning Commissioners Borgens and Seybert, and

Housing and Human Concerns Commissioner Wright.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - lan Bain, Council Member

4. INVOCATION - Chaplain Dennis Logie, Redwood City Police Department

MINUTE BOOK NO. 62
Page 481



5. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY - None.
6. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS AND CONSENT CALENDAR

There was no public comment.
Mayor Foust wished a happy belated birthday to Council Member Bain. Mayor Foust
announced that the circus is in town and it can be great fun.

Mayor Foust read the titles of the items to be approved via the Consent Calendar.

MOTION: Waive reading of the Consent Calendar except the ordinances by title, adopt
the resolutions and the ordinances, and approve other items.

M/S Ira/Howard to approve the Consent Calendar as presented. Council Members Bain
and Howard abstained on item 6.1A since they were not present at the meeting. Motion
carried unanimously by electronic vote with Howard and Bain abstaining on 6.1.A.

6.1 Section - Motions

A. Approve the Regular Council meeting minutes of October 12, 2009 as submitted.
(301) Minute Order 09-219

B. Amendment No. 1 to professional service agreement with Kennedy/Jenks
Consultants in an amount not to exceed $260,000 for the Redwood City Recycled
Water Project — Phase | — Distribution Pump Station Capacity Increase Project.

Recommendation: -

Approve, by motion, Amendment No. 1 to the professional service agreement with
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants in an amount not to exceed $260,000, for a total
contract value of $320,000, and authorize the City Manager to increase the total
contact amount up to 10% if necessary. (304) Minute Order 09-220

C. Agreement with San Mateo County Department of Housing to provide Information
and Referral Services at Fair Oaks Community Center.

Recommendation:

Approve by motion and authorize City Manager to sign the agreement between the
San Mateo County Department of Housing and the City of Redwood City for
Information and Referral services provided at the Fair Oaks Community Center.
(304) Minute Order 09-221

D. Professional service agreement with Moffatt & Nichol in the amount of $184,410 for
levee certification documentation for the levees bordering the Redwood Shores

Peninsula.
JOINT CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD OCTOBER 19, 2009
MEETING MINUTES PAGE 2

MINUTE BOOK NO. 62
Page No. 482



Recommendation:
Approve, by motion, the professional service agreement with Moffatt & Nichol for
levee certification documentation for the levee system protecting the Redwood
Shores Peninsula in an amount not to exceed $184,410 and authorize the City
Manager to increase the contract amount up to 10% if necessary. (304)
Minute Order 09-222
6.2 Section — Resolution
A. Award of Contract — Master Water Meter Replacement Project (Redwood Shores
and Harborside Apartments).

Recommendation:

1. Approve, by motion, the contract documents and award the contract for
construction of the Master Water Meter Replacement Project (Redwood Shores
and Harborside Apartments) to the lowest responsible bidder, D & D Pipelines,
Inc. of San Francisco for their responsive and responsible low bid of $83,300
and authorize the City Manager to increase the contract amount up to 10% if
necessary. (304) Minute Order 09-223

2. Authorize, by resolution, amendment to the budget for the Water Fund Capital
Projects fund to reflect an appropriation transfer of $40,000 from Distribution
System Replacement Program to Master Meter/Backflow Prevention.

RESOLUTION NO. 14975 AMENDING THE REDWOOD CITY BUDGET FOR FISCAL
YEAR 2009-2010 BY TRANSFERRING $40,000 FROM THE “WATER FUND CAPITAL
PROJECTS — DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM REPLACEMENT PROGRAM” ACCOUNT INTO
THE “WATER FUND CAPITAL PROJECTS - MASTER METER/BACKFLOW
PREVENTION” ACCOUNT

6.3 Section — Claims and Warrants

A. Approve warrants dated through October 19, 2009 and usual and necessary
payments through October 26, 2009. (303) Minute Order 09-224

7. STAFF REPORTS
A. Proposition 1A Securitization Program.

Recommendation:
Approve, by resolution, the proposed Proposition 1A Purchase and Sale
Agreement in order to participate in the Proposition 1A Securitization Program.

(304)
JOINT CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD OCTOBER 19, 2009
MEETING MINUTES PAGE 3

MINUTE BOOK NO. 62
Page No. 483



RESOLUTION NO. 14976 APPROVING THE FORM OF AND AUTHORIZING THE
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT AND
RELATED DOCUMENTS WITH RESPECT TO THE SALE OF SELLER’S PROPOSITION
1A RECEIVABLE FROM THE STATE; AND DIRECTING AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN
OTHER ACTIONS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH

Mr. Ponty, Finance Director, gave a brief update on Proposition 1A “Securitization
Program” and how it had passed in Sacramento with a 37-0 vote and is now on the
Governor's desk. He provided an overview of what that program entails (presentation on
file). He added that this is intended to be a non-recourse obligation and should the state
not repay its obligation to the bond holders, local governments are not expected to be
responsible. He added that staff would recommend that if the securitization program gets
approved the Council then adopt “Package 1" and if the securitization program does not
proceed then approve Packets 1 through 4.

Mr. Ponty explained the financial repercussions of these actions. He covered the
implications on the city reserves. He also spoke about the General Improvement District 1-
64 and how this should also be pursued. This matter would come before the Council at the
next Council meeting if the Council approves the Prop 1A approach tonight. He added that
the Finance Committee had given Mr. Ponty direction to collapse the City Hall Certificates
of Participation, and the item will be on next week’s agenda for Council approval. He also
provided a reserve analysis pre and post state takeaways. Mr. Ponty said that another
unknown will be the business license tax that will be on the November 3, 2009 ballot. The
Mayor confirmed that if it passes collection of funds will begin July 1, 2010.

M/S Ira/Aguirre Aguirre to adopt the resolution. Motion carried unanimously by roll call
vote.

B. Budget direction for Fiscal Year 2009/10 General Fund amendments.

Recommendation:

Assuming City Council approval to participate in the Proposition 1A Securitization
Program as recommended in a separate, preceding staff report on this date, by
motion, direct staff to return to Council on Nov. 9, 2009 with a resolution
implementing budget reductions as described as “Package 1" herein, and equal to
$943,715, plus additional parking citation revenues of $75,000, for a total deficit
reduction of $1,018,715 on an annualized basis. (501)

City Manager Ingram presented the options before Council. He added that another option
is to make no cuts and wait to provide direction on the next budget cycle. He shared that
the road to sustainability is a multi-year road and he acknowledged that the size of the
organization as well as services are being cut and this will impact the community. Mr.
Ingram said that the preference would be to select packages as a whole instead of picking
from different packages since a lot of thought was put into each grouping. Mr. Ingram
clarified that Council’s decisions will be formally approved at the November 9, 2009
meeting.

JOINT CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD OCTOBER 19, 2009
MEETING MINUTES PAGE 4
MINUTE BOOK NO. 62
Page No. 484



The City Manager then reviewed in detail long-term financial projections for the city, as well
as impacts on services and how these tie back to the reserves. Questions were raised
about the business tax license should this pass in November 09. Mr. Ponty said these
possible revenues were not included in the projections but Costco and Kohl's were.

Public Comment
Mayor Foust called for public comment but the speaker was no longer present.

Council discussed the cuts in “Package 1" and various departments answered specific
questions.  Mr. Chang, Director of Building Infrastructure and Transportation answered
questions about possible code enforcement cuts. He explained that what is being
suggested is the reduction of one Community Services Officer that is under the Police
Department and he added the implications. He also explained the volunteer pilot program
which will end in November and how helpful they have been with myriad tasks. The GIS
(Geographical Information System) fee was also discussed and Mr. Chang provided
details.

Director Centeno of Parks, Recreation and Community Services answered questions
regarding pulling staff from supporting Capital Improvement Projects. One Council
Member wanted Parks, Recreation and Community Services Director to track the changes
and the consequences of such reductions. City Manager Ingram explained that as certain
cuts get implemented new systems will need to come into play to track and explain
performance relating to certain projects and funds. Ms. Centeno explained that they are
reorganizing and staff will be thoughtful and mindful of these items. She also mentioned
that they are restructuring in a way to possibly create a single Customer Service Center.

Council asked about youth leagues and if they might be available to do field preparation. It
was suggested that staff sit down with the leaders of such groups and ask for assistance.
Ms. Centeno said that all the youth leagues currently already do field preparation. The
Park Development Impact fee was discussed and Ms. Centeno recalled this became
effective December 2007. One Council Member volunteered that she can only go to
“Package 1” and nothing else because of the community impacts.

Mr. Chang answered questions about volunteers and how much value they have added to
the department. Council asked specific questions regarding the use of volunteers and the
tasks they perform. Vice Mayor Howard commented that she had access to a group of
people who would like to adopt certain city areas and feel like they are contributing. She
has heard time and again that people in the community want to be part of the solution.
Mayor Foust said that there are community members who have also met with her and want
to get involved and participate. Mayor Foust mentioned the Shinnyo-en Foundation as a
group that wants to get involved and is already doing clean up around Red Morton Park.
She is seeking ideas from staff about basic items that can be handled by volunteers. She
opined that this is something the Department Heads could discuss. Mr. Ingram concurred
that volunteers can be utilized and the City is exploring how to develop such a program.
He added that the labor groups also need to be included in this conversation. One Council
Member explained that there might be a need to increase the budget to implement such a

JOINT CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD OCTOBER 19, 2009
MEETING MINUTES PAGE 5
MINUTE BOOK NO. 62
Page No. 485



volunteer program. One Council Member asked that staff share some of the benefits that
volunteers bring and the value of having a ready to go cadre of people.

The Police Department's proposed cuts were discussed and in particular the Police
Resource Officer position shared by the Sequoia High School. Mayor Foust said that she
would be willing to switch the newsletter (Package 2) for the Police Resource Officer (which
is on Package 1). She also said the librarian for the archives is another one that is
important to her. It was also suggested that the juvenile detective be considered and
Captain Matuszak said both are really hard and it is a judgment call. There was an
acknowledgement that this is an extraordinary time. One Council Member asked for a
future report back on the cuts what could alter the projections such as union concessions
and employee costs. It was mentioned that the revenue side could help improve the
structural imbalance and decrease the amount that needs to be cut, but it is not an easy
area to fix.

One Council Member suggested that the juvenile detective be at the school and asked if
this would be beneficial. Captain Matuszak explained that there are benefits to placing staff
at a central location like the Police Department. It was suggested that this be looked at
more carefully. Captain Matuszak added that the Juvenile Officer has a different skill set
and does a great job liaisoning with other agencies. Vice Mayor Howard suggested going
to the Sequoia Hospital District and asking for partial funding if there is a nexus between
the services provided and that institution.  One Council Member asked if other high
schools have a SRO (School Resource Officer). Staff and Council shared some of their
knowledge in this area.

Public Comment

John Edmonds said that there is a wealth of volunteers at the Senior Center and they can
be part of the solution. He noted that he will soon have a published book on the Civil War,
which includes information on Redwood City and Northern California, and that the book
lists the telephone number for the Library’s Local History Room in its bibliography. He
talked about the value of the Library’s Local History Room and suggested that this budget
cut be reconsidered.

Council took a break at 8:50 p.m. The meeting resumed at 9:08 p.m.

Dave Genesy, Library Director, said that last year about 1,400 volunteers supported
Project READ. One Council Member explained that hopefully the history room will be
“protected” by the Library Foundation. Mr. Genesy explained what he thought was the plan
for this position. Vice Mayor Howard thanked the Library Foundation for its hard work and
initiative.

Jim Skinner, Fire Chief answered questions relating to the Fire Department budget. The
personnel trends in the Fire Department were explained and Chief Skinner explained the
compacting of the Fire Marshall and the Fire Chief position. One Council Member hoped
that the expense side can be managed and revenues come in to address the structural
imbalance. Another Council Member explained that if nothing is done on the expense side
then packages two, three and four might be implemented next year.

JOINT CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD OCTOBER 19, 2009
MEETING MINUTES PAGE 6
MINUTE BOOK NO. 62
Page No. 486



